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tisms, 22 weddings and 25 funertus.’c. A, Fitch; lay delegates, Major Cro-
The Sunday schqgl has a total of F‘”,””t H. M. Blackburn ang Capt. Ma-
scholars, teachers and members of he lone. There weré 413 communieants on
orchestra on its roll, the average:at-' Easter Duy. The tota] amount recsiv-
tendance being about 400. The elect ns ed from all sources during the year was
resulted: Rector's warden, Noet Mar-| $7106.10. ' Rev. H. McCausland will as-
shall; people's warden, Alfred Parkor; | sume the duties of curate next week.
sldesmen—rector's, Messrs. Farr, Hast-
Ings, Jones, Reid, Beadle, Fidler, Pear-
fall, Gill, Forman, Crossland, Heath,
T. Dobson, W. Dobgon, Inglestrum,
Vick and Minns; people's Mesars.
Thompson. Stokes, Brown, Banks, Mill-
ward, Collett, Peaks, Swanston, Swift,
Steen, Allen, Lye, VanWinkle, Cattén,
Watts, Harding, Webbey, Watt, Col-
lins and Bright; auaitors, C. T. Logan
and E. A, Lye; parochial tribunui, W.
F. Summerhayes and G. F. Sampson;
advisory board, Messrs. Marshall, Adie,
Vick and Ewan; envelope secretary, W.
J. Field; delegates to synod, Messrs.
Summerhayes, Ewan and Thomas; ves-
try elerk, F. Jones. .

e
S—

tor. Delegates to the synod are Beve
erley Jones, J. Maughan, sr, and Dr,
Hariey Smith, “he sidesmen are R J
Code, C Barclay, H H Drury,. Geo
Mackay, § Bennett, A Neal, ¥ Turner,
P Wrignt, § w Hickson, R Charleton,
Hughes, H Parsons, W 4 Couison, R
Hoskin and ¢ Cognlan, ¢ Cognlag
was also electeq vestry clerk, .

1 g i

Christ's Church, (R.E.)

The annual congregational meetin
of Christ Church, Retormed Episcopal,
was the most successful yet. ‘L'he rece
tor, Kev. Willarq Brewing, presided.
'The various reports were excahent and
showed a substantial balance ]
There is markeq improvement in tne
membership ana attendance at
vices. The Sunday ' schoo] has
added Jargely to 1ts {membership,
following omicers were elected:
lul's warden,
ple’s warden,

municants ‘En‘ter Sunday, whlc&wg‘h
one ption, was the largest e
churcmmbry. The retiring war-
dens recommended the purchase of 2
new site. for theé church, west of the
present location ,to cost $2500. The
proposition was approved, and it was
meeting of the con-
 actio

den, and D). Henderson, people’s ‘var-
den. The sidesmen are: Messrs, An=
thes, Atkinson, Borland, Bliss, Cornish,
Goode, McCausland, McKibbon, Stan-
ley, Wilson, Butler, Gautt, Hlills, Jose,

ars 200 families had left the district
]ftfr other parts of the city. A l‘argo
departmental store was sald to Jave
purchased the whole western section
of Trinity-square. It looked as if the
Pparish would be left, as many of those! ;Murtin,,. Murdoch, Miller, Morton,
‘of London, England, with no popula-| O'Brien, Saunders, Smith, Worthing-
tion save the caretaléers', 'otAthe lu;'(-l‘ ;on. Williams, Weller, Walker and
roundi buildings. . J. Agar sal oung. i
that mn.;. mission church, with several
clergymen, Holy Trinity shoulg find a
field for work, ang expressed an aver-
sion to any proposal iv i1emove. pur-
ing ear the offertory totalled $2512,
of wh cx $1086 was by envelope. The for a new church, which was offered
revenues from all sources ﬂ-mel’ltedjby a friend of the congregation at w{‘agt
$4378. Against this there was an eX- | was considered a moderate figure. :
penditure of §4164.63. The vestry select-' matter was left to the advisory boar
ed F. A. Blachford and M. Thrush as and will be taken up immediateiy. The
Blachtord and 5. A" Wobran K.Cr e | pubid decressioE ot ths ohuien mort

chiord and J. orrell, K.C., re~ rom 0 a
glef\t;d deli?f‘;tifstgo the synod, and C.|pointed to as an evidence of progress.
& ar w e vacancy in the re-

Receipts were $4282.56¢ and disburse-
presentation caussd by the death of|ments were $4195.63. The electizn of of-
the late Willlam Ince. J. L. Turquand

ficers resulted: Rector’'s warden, Percy
and W. R, Cavell will act as auditors.

Magdalene's will further consider n,n
318.(?00 addition to the church, St.Mark’s
(Parkdale). will have a new Sunday
school building. Christ's Church,Deer
Park, will buy a new site. At Holy
Trinty the intrusion of manufacturing
concerns and. the. influx of foreigners
into the neighborhood, has caused the
removal of 200 families. Still, senti-
ment did not favor that of removing
the church. At St. James' Cathedral
Canon Welch spoke of pewholders as
the "cause of many vacant seats at
morning service. . The (thurchseoto ft!;g
Ascension reported an increa

per cent. in attendance. The Church
of the Messiah gave the rector an In-
crease of $200 and a $100 bonus. St.
Paul's increased the. stipend of Ca.nqn
Cody from $4200 to $4500. St. Phillip’s
has cut the church debt ln‘,two.',‘ sAtt
-Cyprian’s reported ‘‘a record year.

St. Stephen's the rector refused an in-‘l
creaso on salary offered of $200; the
curate. was increased $200 and the
organist $100. The rector of St
Mathias® had his stipend increased
$100. St. Thomas'® Church will raise
& sum of $10,000 toward the church
debt. The Church of the Redeemer
will instal] bowling alleys in the Sun-
day school basement as an  ald t'o
Sunday school work. St, Margaret's
» Church reduced the debt $1000 during

decided to call a
gregation and take . The

St. Murs's, Dovercoatt. ; ke
a1 elections resulted

St. Mary's Church, Dovercourt, had
a banner year. Rev, Anthony Hart
presided. The wardens reporteg that
the mortgage had been reduced from
$3000 to $8000, anq the congregation had
increased in numbers to such an ex-
tent that it was found necessary to opcen
a mission branch in Bartlett-avenue,
north of the C.P.R. tracks, anq just
outside the city limits, Ywith a view
to opening a new parish in this neigh-
borhooq in a few years. There are 340
members on the roll, and 400 scholars
and teachers in the Sunday school, The
receipts were $300 in excess of .the pre-
vious year, being $3345.71; disbu:se-
ments, $3217.71. The following officers
were elected: Rector's warden, A. M.
M. Kirkpatrick: people’'s warden, G, G.
Meackenzie; sidesmen, Messrs. J. A.
Ready, A. B, Fryer. T. Linsell. .
Payne, J. McKee, H. Hutson, H. Hobbs,
W. R. Bartlett, G. S. Kirkpatrick, jas
Boyd, . N. Barber, J. . Goodrich, J.
W. Noble, T. W. Gooding, Robert Moon
anq W. Faragher; auditors, Messrs, S.
T. Sheppard and J. McKee; vestry
clerk, W, Faragher; lay representatives
to the synod, Messrs, G. B. Kirkpat-
rick, 8. T, Sheppard and C. A. Bell,

e

Chureh of Epiphany.
- The question of greatest interest to
the church in Parkdale was the con-
sideration of a proposal to buy a site!

Burke, D. Coulson, W. Cook, G. Hutty,
E. Harbord, W. Muston, W. Pratt; R.
Hamlin, F. Ford, A. Muntz and H.
Sefton. .
St. Mary Magdalene,

A brief resume of what ‘has been ac-
complished at St- Mary Ma.gdalen’c
since 1897 was given In the rector's
letter to the congregation. At that
date the church indebtedness amounted
to $9500. Since then the debt has
been reduced to $147. On the debt re-
duction fund $1929 was paid during
this year. The total receipts for par-
ish purposes amounted to $2520, and
the average  Sunday offertory, .
excluding Easter Day, for the past
year, was $37.73. The collections on
Easter amounted to. $430, while the
number of communicants was 82 more
than last year. The chief business
was the discussion of enlarging the
church at a cost of $18,000. ‘The fol-

also.
‘I'ne
Ree-
. '’homas Davis. Peo-
r, W. Johnston, Sece
retary-treasurer, Mr, Charles Palmer,

Vestrymen: Messrs, Fower,  H. Fare
ley, T. Hall, 8. Wright, J. ‘Witchall, R, :
Barrett, W. Whiteacre, R. Kerr, dgit
Barrett, :

1

D. Ball; people’'s warden, Robsrt B.
Nixon; advisory committee, W. A.
Cooke, C. B. Smith, W. BE. Boucher, J.
S. Stone, T. J. Johnson, D, Wolverton,
Willlam Wedd, G. K. McLean, H. S.
Parkhurst, A. McConnell, E. 8. Ball,
A. B, Stonbury,” R. D. Harling, Wm.
Wright, R. W, Hicks, J. J. Bryan;
sidesmen, J. S, Herod, A. Clavanagh,
T. J. Johnston, H. 8. Parkhurst, T. H.
Yeoman, J. N. Rhodes, Willlam Wright,
A. B. Stanbury, W. A. Cooke, G. Hailes,
A. Hallett, E. 8. Ball. ’

St, Anne’s. !

Altho the balance Teft over in the
treasury of St. Anne's is small, satis-
fuctory reports were presented. As the
churchwarden's report stated $1935 was
palg on' the mortgage, and $400 for the
new purchase of land on Gladstone-
avenue used by the rink. This leaves
only $2240 in mortgages outstandlng.
$1215 on the church and $1025 on the
rink. The rink paid its way this year
to the great surprise of the congrega-
tion, It had a cash balance of $28.24 to
its credit. The receipts for the year
Wwere $8585.78, of this $3007.07 was paid

St. Bartholomew’s.
The reports showed the congregation
to be in a prosperous state. The Sun-
day school has now a total of 190 schol-
ars on the roll, with an average at-
tendance of about 150, The school
raised $39 for missions on Easter Day.
During the year a surpliced choir was
organized and the number of com-
municants on Easter Day was 102, Re-
ceipts for the year were $1600, = The
Woman's Auxiliary raised $210.66 and
the Young The-

§t. Matthias,

A satisfactory condition was reported,
A new rectory, costing over $3800, has
been erected, and the rector is now in
residence there. Considerable improves
ments have been effected in the church
fabric, new windows having been put
in and the seats and woodwork reno«

vated. The churchwardens, in’ thejr re-

. 8§t. Barnabas’,

the year. Little Trinity Church,report-
- ed a greatly increased attendance, in-
duced by _stereopticon illustrations
during evening sermons.

St. James’. %

All the' reports submitted - at the
meeting of St. James’ Cathedral were
of a most satisfactory nature, Qanon
Welck presideq and reported a grati-

ongregations of $2217.38 and efpenditure $2117.75, leaving
SyCRY Jear. - WhiE the congres $104.63 on hand.

both mmorning and evening services are
steadily increasing in size, however, it
was noticeable’ that ‘the morning con-
gregation was much less steadily re-

lar than that of the evening, and

tho pews, were readily rented, }."et
they were often unoccupled:;: and “it
does not seem reasonable,” he said, ‘“‘to

following we
dens, James Lowrey and R. Ferriss;
sidesmen,
.{Chesman,
lay delegates to synod, R, Postous; W.
H. Canniff and James Lowrey.
G. L Taylor, rector, was in the chair.

fund.

$256.13 and the income from the rectory

rent pews angd -not occupy them, be-
cause the effect of this is to keep away
from church those who woulg come: if
“they could get sittings.” The guestion of ;
erecting a new parish house should be |
seriously considered, as the present,
building was inadequate. The finan- |
cial statement met with general ap- |
proval. It showed the total income as
$20,834.91, exclusive of missionary and
" other ' collections, which amounted to
$6039.46. The total disbursements for
parish purposes were $12,605-86. De- !
benture, cemetery ang other émpenses]
brought the total disbursement to
$20,804.03. The offertory increased
$1000 over last year. The electric. wir-
ing of the cathedral has been renewed
at a cost of $535, and an echo organ in-
stalled at a cost of $2000. The usual
payment of $1000 has been r_na.de on the
church debt and $1700 paid off ° the
cemetery debt, leaving the total debt |
now outstanding at $68,400. The free-
hold of nine pews has been bought
back by the warden for $2390. The.
rectory debt stands at $1134, and the!
amount owed on the see endowmenti
- 81075, - The wardens urge these be met
‘this year. Improvements to the ceme-
tery .during -the year cost about 318,-i
000. The election of churchwa.rdens.’
lay representatives and sidesmen re-
sulted: Churchwardens, J H G Hag-
arty, rector's warden; A H Campbell,
jr, (people’s warden. Lay representa-,
tives: Hon J K Kerr, Lieut-Col Gra~ |
sett and Lieut-Col C. A, Denison. |
Sidesmen: A Aldridge, C H Anderson,
E Armour, S A Baker, H Barnhart, CI
A B Brown, E P Brown, G H C;
Brooke M C Cameron, E M Carleton,
R W Clewlo, A C Cooch, T R Mills, AE
“T Darragh, Col C A Denison, F M
Gray, A W Grasett, Col H J Grasett,
Dr F LeM Grasett, R Gregory, W H
Gould, F W Hugfhes, Dr D Ogden
Jones, C H B Johnston, H G King-
stone, A E- Whatmough, H F Kirkpat-
rick, R D Montgomery, C A Moss, F
J ‘Musgrove, W J Rooke, Dr E Stanley
Ryerson, W A Smith, F M Stitt, w H
Swan and Dr A Algernon Temple,

St. Philip’s.
Offertory receipts Yat
Ven. Archdeacon Swgeny rector, show
an increase over last yéar of $209 and
the total -from this sourve is $2934.11,
or an average of $56.42 per Sunday.
The parish has more than met its al-
lotment for the miSsionary society and
$200 has been pald off the church debt.
Special collections for maintenance
purposes show a slight decrease, The
genera] receipts from gll sources were
$4443 and the collections for missions
$617. The genera] receipts are $300
more than in 1905 and over $500 higher
than in 1904. The officers are: War-
dens, J L Bird ang Charles Evans-
Lewis. Lay representatives to synod:
Robert McClelland, E Macrae¢ and Wm
Brooks. Auditors: W Brooks and J D
‘Bland. Parochial tribunal: Robert
McClellang and Wm Burton. Rector’'s
sidesmen: Wm Burton, John Barton,
John Tanner, M Boswell, R F Charl-
ton. S T Church, J P Lever, T H Fitz-
- 8immons, A G Gaskins. People's
sidesmen: R McClelland, E Macrae,
J Irvine, W Sherring, W Brooks, J D
Bland, J Gregory J Carlow and W J
Raycroft.

St. . Philip’s,

St. Peter’s.
The . meeting in St. Peter's Church

adjourned until April 23, because the

rector, Rev. F. Wilkinson, has been
suddenly calledq to Brockville on ac-
count of his mother’s illness. The year
closed has been perhaps the most
eventful in the church’s history, The
removal by death of the late rector, !
the Ven. -Archdeacon Boddy, is still
felt with deep sorrow. To his memory
a handsome tablet has been erected in

'officers on the roll and the average at-
school were $279 and a balance of $60.92

Iman’s Auxiliary raised $710.33.

:The following were elected officers:

|Clarke,

| sins, $1954.99

the church by the family and a me-
morial window will be placed in the |
south transept by members: of the|
-church. A new ‘rectory has been builtf
at a cost of $6065.80. The chmrch has |
been re-seated, the entire fldor space |
and basement renovated, costing $3.-
359.92.

The system of pew renting has been
abandoned. Another improvement will |
be a new brass pulpit; the gift of oneJ
of the congregation. There is a bal- |
ance due on the repairing and rectory |
accounts of about $1500. It will be the !
church’s next task to remove this and |
2lso create a sinking fund to reduce the |
mortgage. The receipts for the year,
including an overdraft of $9115, were
$14,227.18. The report of the Woman’s
Auxiliary shows receipts of $285.29,
with a small balance. All pledges were
met, viz.: Missions, Lesser Slave Loke,
$5: Onion Lake, $5; Temiskaming,
$5; Blackfoot Hospital $30: Blackfoot
Home, $30: Jonah Home, $50.

Church of the Holy 'Trinity,
The future of the Church of the Holy |
Trinity was discussed very briefly. Rey,
Dr. Pearson, the ‘rector, said .that the
Influx of foreigners ang the encroach- |
ment of factories in the parish was
pming a serious matter, Within five

y)

| missions.

Piople’s Guild $14.91,
ré elected officers: War-
Messrs. George Lyons, G20orge
J." Robertson and M. Park;

Rev.

St. Clement’-'
The reports showed receipts of
In addition an instal-
ment will be received from the rectory
The total offeftories were
$1628.48, the collections for missions

fund $106.26. Of the exp>nditure
$1011.04 was paid out for salaries cof
rector, $144 to the sexton and $288.54
was given to missions. The general
expenses were $425.55. The Sunday
school has 432 scholars, teachers and
tendance was 203. The receipts of tte
has been carried forward. The Wo-
The
meeting finally adopted the recommen-
dation of the building committee to
construct an addition to the church to
accommodate an extra 125 to 140 per-
sons, to cost $1500, ahd the total seating
capacity of the church will be 450. The
new part is designed to be temporary.

People’s warden, John
rector’'s warden, James
sory board, Rev. J. H.
wardens,

C. Nicholson;
Sturgill; advi-
Bushell, the
) Messrs., E. J. Kingston, Geo.
Briggs, W. Montgomery, Capt. Ven-
nelles, A. E. Guest, E. Willows, J.
Kerrigan, H. Saunders, George G.
Guest and T. Fleury; sidesmen, Messrs,
Johnstone, Gadsby and J.
Gard; lay delegates, Capt. Vennelles,
A, . Guest and J. H. Templeman;
auditors, Messrs, Willows and YVen-
nelles. Rev. Jehn Bushell, the rector,
occupied the chair. 3

All Saints’

The . churchwardens of All Saints’
presented a very satisfactory annual
statement. - Tota] receipts, including a
balance of $189.50 brought forward, |
amounted - to $10,844.66. The
sources of income were: Offertory, $5.- |
514.20; special contributions for mis-
; Lent cards, $1620; dona-
tions, $760. Samae] Trees proposed
that g Suggestion made by the rector
at a previous meeting that the church
support its own foreign missionary be
carried out, W. H. Lockhart Gordon
Wwas afraid that such a step would re-
duce their contributions to the missions
to the Northwest, which, in his opin-
ion, had the first claim on them. Mr.
Barr explaineg that the mission board |
only requireg an annual contribution |
of 3500 to allow a church to designate
its own missionary, The proposal was
left over. ‘Canon Baldwin reported 628
communicants on Easter Sunday and
281 baptisms, 53 marriages, 71 funetrals
and 71 confirmations. The Sunday
school report indicated a gratifying
state of affairs in this department of
church work, notwithstanding the in-
sufficiency of accommodation with
which the finance committee are con-
sidering how to cope. The register
showg nearly 1600 names, while the av-
erage attendance exceeds 1100. The re.
ceipts wexe $1391. The statement pre-
sented by Mr. Brigden of the work
carried on among the boys in the Ar-
thur Baldwin Hall was recéived with
great interest., The receipts were $1,-
256. The following officers were elect-
ed:  Rector's churchwarden, Samuel
Trees; people’s churchwarden, .7 L,
Morrison, Sidesmen: Messrs W Cooke,
H W Ellisson, J B Fleming, g F Shaw,
Dr C A Risw, H Fullerton, F W Brig-
den, R Stanley, C B Dewey, R Burt, M
Smith, Dr McCollum, F Walmsley, J
D Trees, C H Hollway, Fred Dewey
and F Storey. Finance committee:
‘Messrs James Haywood, W H Lock-
hart Gordon, W'H Knowlton and HW
Ellison. Auditors: Messrs J B Flem-
Ing and H W Ellisson, Jamesg Hayf |
wood, H W Lockhart Gordon and
Samuel Trees were elected delegates to
the synod,

H.

6n

to

A,
er,

St. Mark’s.

A decision to immediataéely let con-
tracts for the erection of a new Sab-
bath school was reached at the vestry
meeting of St. Mark's (Parkdale}
Church. It is hoped that the first sod
will be turneqg shortly after May 1, and
the Bishop of Toronto, if his health
permits, will be called upon to perform
the ceremony, Up to the present time
$4000 has been subscribed. There was
some slight criticism of the members
of the congregation by the choirmas-
ter, who called upon them to take a
deeper interest in his part of the ser-
vice.

The contributions for the year were
more than sufficient to meet the needs
of the church, the sum of $3222 being
subscribed. Over $500 was given to

mi

The churchwardens elected were:
Messrs. T Jenkins and Kelk; ang the
sidesmen were Messrs Baldwin, Ro-
gers, J Kellett, A Almas, A ‘W Black,
W J Clark, W W Wood, R P Hepburn,
C McRae, J Hanson, J T Stickwood, B
Montizambert, H Goodings, T J Telfer,
W A Shott, Wm Cornock, J W Keddy,
W Lampitt, G Gowanlock, The dele-
gates to the synod are J A Cameron,
Willlam Gowanlock and W J Clark.

of

St. John the Evangelist,

Rev. A, Williams presided. The fin-
ancial statement showed receipts of
$3500, leaving a balance of $29.92. For|
missiong and similar purposes the;
church gave $490. The floating indebt-
edness was reduced by about $400, A
mortgage indebtedness of about $12.800
remains. It was decided 4o instal a
motor to run the organ. Col. Septimus
J. A, Denison was chosen rector’'s wars=

of

Rev. W. H. Clarke, rector_of St, Bar-
nabas’ Church, occupied the chair at
the vestry meeting
fimancial condition of the church was
good, the statement showing receipts of
$2142 and expenditure $2104. Of the lat-
ter $500 was on church debt, The elecs
tion of officers resulted: Churchwar-
dens, Robert Burns, F. Pennal; tri-
bunal, A. Stratton, George Burns; au-
ditors,
sidesmen, J. B. Reid, Rotert Tate, H.
Bainger, H, Good, S. Mitchell, H. Ed-
rupp, George Burns, Willlam Coulsos;
lay delegtates, Robert Burns, Alexan-
der Stratton, 8. Mitchell, :

Extreme

eeting. Credit
g;lurchwardens. A. S. Wigmore (who
Was unanimously re-elected) and H.
W.
the rector, Rev. C. J. James, who re-
marked that the year had been a rec-
ord one.
plated in modern church methods and
the wardens will at once take up the
matter of greatly improving the Sun-
day school accommodation, fitting up
the basement of the school-room with
bowling alleys and making other im-
provements. The question of
over the Aura Lee athletic grounds as
a church property was also discussed,
but it was decideq to take no action
and to leave the club under outside
management.
showed receipts of $12,449.18 and dis-
burtements $12,345.35.
show expected receipts of $10,133.44 and
expenses a few dollars less, notw'th-
standing an allowance of $800 for cler-
ical assistance for the rector. Colin R.
. Postlethwalte was re-elerted vest-y
clerk. He declined to accept the usual
allowance of $100 and received much
praise for his unselfish devotion.
churchwardens and vestry clerk were
empowered to name the various com-
mittees and sidesmen and Messrs, A.

b,

Iand N. W. Hoyles, K.C.,: LL, D., were
're-

nected with the church and a resolu-
tion of sympathy with the widow of
the late Samuel Toy was passed. The
work of the choir was a subject for
much

music will' be repeated next Sunday.

“An exceedingly prosperous year; in
fact, a record
Seager at St. Cyprian’s vestry meets
ing. The average daily attendance at
the serviceg during the year was close

moval to the present site the congrega-
tiong  have materially increased.
.church population in the district
Increased, and sdores of families had
been added to th
financial
celptst of $1641.13,
$1647.84;
making a total deficit of $169.82.
was not to be considered a deficit when
the statement
$281.33.
tee report a deficit of $270.94, with out-
standing subscriptiong ampu
over $1000. A. Barrett was
vestry clerk; T. B. Wood
Fraser, wardens.

There was an unusually large attende
ance at St. Luke’s vestry meeting, due

ment might be made touching the sug-
gesteg superannuation of the rector,
Rev. Dr. Langtry, who has been un-
able to attend to his duties for some
months.

feelingly
said that
ther he would
his charge. H
ing be adjourned til
rHon. Justice Osler,

appointed a committee to confer with
the rector and report. The motion was
carried and the meeting adjourned,
The financial statement shows a suc-
cessful yeat. !
are $6211.17, which, with $1187.93 for|

makes the total $7399.10. The
disbursements total $5968.07,
balance from general receipts
which is being applied to re
year's overdraft of $320.63.
tory of $5049.53, shows an increase of
$27
est in the church’s history.
ceipts for missions, ete., show an in-
crease of $435.37 over last year, while
the number of communicants
largest yet recorded. F.
Geo. S. Holmsted, KC, and W. 5.
Fairbairn will represent St. Luke’s at
the diecesan synod.

- Rev. Canon Farncomb presided, and |
two important matters were u
cussion.
ment of a curate,
with reference to the erection of a new
schoolhouse adjoining the church,
motion was carried, leaving the matter

and
for the first year to be about $500. Noel |
Marshall said that
had been made for the property occu-
pied by the old school, but he thought
the property wag worth $2000. - A_ sub- |
ccmmittee will deal with it.
from all sources, including a balance of,
$141.70,
$3975.19,
Out of this amount $1000
the mortgage. which now
$13,000. There is a mort
school of $1000. The parish is composed

last - night. The

H. D. Pennal, George Burns;

Church of the Redeemer,
satisfaction marked
was -given to

the
the

Beatty, who was reappointed by

Further progress is contem-

taking

The financial statement

The estimates

The

Campbell, Thomas Millman, M.D.,

elected lay delegates to the synod.
of the vestry were
s and socleties con-

congratulation. The \Easter

St. Cyprian’s.

year,” said Rev. C. A.

to 500. and since the church’s re-

The
nad

e church lists,
statement

‘The

shows ‘total re-
and expenditures,
outstanding accounts, $163.65,
This

shows extra expense of
The new church fund commit-

nting to
appointed
and Thos,

St. Luke’s.

the expectation that some announce-

Walter Cassels, K.C., referred
to Dr. Langtry's illness, and
doubt existed as to whe-
again.be able to resume
€ moved that tﬁ meet-
June 14, d that
Clarkson Jones, J.
Catto, W, H. Fairbairn; Chas, Walk-
T. H. Cleghorn ang the speaker be

The total general receipts

ssions and non-parochial objects, |
general
leaving a
of $243.10,
duce last
The offer-
6.09 over last year’s, and is the larg-

The re-

In stipends to the clergy, and $718.50 in
salaries. Only flve cents is left
the treasury. The other branches of the
church are in a healthy state. A. L.
Johnston ang R. H, Coleman, €hurch-
wardens, were re-elected. The other
elections resulted: Vestry clerk, Rus-
sell Brown; envelope clerk, E. Hawss;
lay delegates, E. Hawes, J. Blacklock
and T. N. Sampson; finance committee,
J. Blacklock, C, Witchall, G. Rathbong,
A. Denison, C. F. Vanhorn, T. N. Samp-
son, W. Martin, George Lea,A. 8. Cratlg,
J. E. Featherstonhaugh, Alex McKes,
F. George, R. Punchard, J. T. Dyson,
Messrs. Keeler, French, Kennedy, Rev.
L. E. Skey, rector, and the church~
wardens, i

St. George’s.

Canon Cayley presided, and the largs
attendance left no doubt as to the cheer-
ful outlook for another year’'s work. A
feature of the financial report was the
reduction of the floating debt to $200,
largely the result of the active work
of the women of the congregation, The
ordinary revenue totaled $3918, while the
total revenue amounted to $6563. Ordi+
nary expenditures were $3627, while ex-
penditureg on account of missions and
charities totaled $1608, and special ex-
penses, including interest, repairs and
improvements $1454. - The new wardens
are George C. Biggar (people’s) and L.
S. McMurray (rector’s). ‘The staesmen
are: Huson W, M. Murray (chairman),
S. B. Harman, C. D. Heath, Dr. Baines,
F. 8. Payne, G. P. Reid, R. Renshaw,
R. B. Street, R. C. Street, H. Winsor,
H. L. M, Weller, J. E. Cameron, R. C.
Bourne,. C. Wilkizson, Capt. Strong;
A. R. Smith, Godfrey Herlock, Fred
Allsopp and R. Crashley. The dele~
gates to the synod are Huson Murray,
G. F. Harman and E. Douglas Armour,
G

St. Jude’s.

been made into a separate parish on
May 25, 1905. The rector, Rev. J. L. P.
Roberts. who presided, reported a very
Successful year. The total receipts

of $3.34.. The Easter offering amount-
ed to $131.75. There were 176 communi-
cants on Easter Day. The officers elect-
ed are: Rector’'s warden, W. E. Squire;
people’s warden, E. P, Howe; sidesmen,
Messrs. Cooper, Ormsby, Horton, Hynd-
man, Hobbs, Potter, Wyly Grier, Strat-
ford, Bawden and McDeérmott; dele-
gates to ,the synod,” J. Y. Ormsby, J.
J. Cooper and W, E. Squire; auditors,
Messrs, Ormsby and Cooper.

St. Paual’s.

The income on the general expense
account has been $14,305.11, being: pew
rents, $6033.05, and, offertory collections,
$8272.06, a gain of $1343.28. In addition,
the amount contributed to the church
beneficiary and missionary schemes was
$6397.62,and to the building fund $3634.30.
The balance of the amount for the Epis-
copal endowment fund, $295, has been
praid, the total paid in from the parish
being $1540 in full discharge of the allot-
ment. The Sunday school contributions
were $635. The total offerings have,
therefore, been $25,276.76. The envelope
subscriptions have considerably increas-
ed, and.the open plate collectionsg by
about 25 per cent. The wardens have
paig over to the building fund $4350.
The debt on the recent enlargement and
organ has been reduced to $6200, and a
further reduction! has been made by the
Easter offering. It was decided to in-
crease the stipend of the rector, Canon
Cody, from $4200 to $46w. Officers were
electeq as follows: Wardens, rector’s,
W. R. Smallpeice; people’s, D. D. E.
Cooper; representatives to the synod,
Hon, 8. H. Blake, K.C., Stapleton Caldi-
cott, Jas, R, Roaf; finance and advis-
ory committee, F. W, Baillle, R. R.
Bengard, E, Boisseau, C. C. Dalton, H.
P. Dwight, John Dick, R. Y. Ellis,
W. G. Eakins, R. B. Harcourt, G. R.
Hargraft, E. J. Lennox, P. C. Larkin,
T. Mortimer, R. Millichamp, C. Mar-
riott, R. Parker, Aubrey White; sides-
men, rector's—C. G. Adam, H. Blake,
W. 8. Burton, B. B. Cronyn, D. Car-
ley, A. E. Dalton, J. D. Falconbridge,
J. M. Lowndes, A. E. Kirkpatrick, G.
H. Kilmer, A. M. Ivey, Chas E. Lee,
G. H. Muntz, F. A, Rolph, H.R.O’Hara,
H. Smallpeice, F'. M. Sloan, A. F. Web-
ster, L. A. Winter, E. T. Zinkan; peo-
ple’s—J. J, Ashworth, G. F. Beer, L.
L. Boyd, J. S. Denison, F. Fenton, J.
W. G. Greey, G. R. Hargraft, = Eben
James, J. S. Johnston, W. A. H. Kerr,
Chas Lewis, Alfred M n, H. W
MacMahon, W. D. McPherson, Gerard

is the
Arnoldi, K.C.;

St. Matthew’s.

p for dis-|
One concerned  the appoint-
ang the other was
A

a curate in the hands of the rector,
the churchwardens, the stipend

an offer of $1500

Receipts

were $5117.04, and expenditures

Muntz, Godfrey Pate. F, W. Strathy, A,
P. Taylor, F. H. Till, N. A, Wylie,

St. Augustin’s.

The rector, Rev. F. G. Plummer, pre=
sided. The reports were very satis-
factory. The receipts have materially
increased and a large number of new
members added. The statement shows
a balance in all funds of $1023.59, and
the only amount unprowided for is
$161.15 in connection with the purchase
of the organ.. A special report was
adopted recommending the appointment
of a curate, and an enlargement of the
church, to cost $3500.. The election of
officers resulted as follows: Wardens—
rector’s, F. W, Harcourt; people’s, E,
B. Brown; finance committee, H, M.
Blackburn, John DeGruchy, Geo W,
Warwick and Raymond Walker; ¢n-
velope committee, W, H. Smith, Capt.
J. W. Anderson, W. H. Canniff, T, H.
Firth, John McCaul, Kenneth Stewart,
W. R. Vardon, G. F. Woodhouse and J.
W. Barrett; sidesmen, W. J. Coving-

leaving a balance of $1141.85. |
was paid off|
amountg to|
gage on the/

900 families.  There were 75 bap-

ton, J. W. Barrett, J. W. Everett, Ed-
win Keefer, W. H, Smith, J. H. Hamil-
ton, A. W. Croft, Raymond Walker, C.
F. Mansell, Hy Etches, T. E. Davis,
J. A. G. Crozier, J. T. Skaith, A. B
Lamb, C. A. Fitch; auditors, H. T,
Meyer and John DeGruchy;vestry clerk,

The past year has markeq an. epoch
in the history of this church, it having

amounted to $1191,42, leaving a balance!

{Cook, Chapman

‘ber, and G.

Church of the Asceusion,

The churchwardens report was one
of the most satisfactory’ yvet prhesented
to the. vestry. The receipts from all
Sources amounted to $4399.32, and af-
ter paying all expenses there is a bal-
ance on: ordinary account of $200.23.
In addition to this the sum of $2274,50
was bequeathed to the church by the
late Miss Mary Quaile- The total
amount on hand is $2496.31.. Since the
Rev. W. H. Vance took charge in July
last there has been a steady increase
in the attendance, the increase for
the last six months belng slightly over
50 per cent. per Sunday. The number
of communicants on Easter Sunday
was the largest in the history of the
church. The rector's stipend was in-
creased by $200, and the salaries of
the organist and choirmaster were
both advanced. ‘Improvements esti-
mated af $750 were' recommended. It
was decided to erect a suitable tablet
in the church to the memory of the
late Miss Quaile. The following offi-
cers were elected: Rector's warden,
W. H. Kincade; people’s warden, Maf-
thew Currey; executive committee, T.
D. Delamere, K.C.; Thomas Langton,
RO R.. €, Bickerstaff, Wm. Fahey,
W. E. Wellington, Col- J. M. Dela-
mere, W. D. Thomas, and Dr. Geo.
S. Jordan; sidesmen, J. P. Arnott, J.
WJ. Bolton, W. Bustard, Alf. Burton,
‘Wm, Barber, v, P, Baton. -Q. F
Dodge, Jas. Hodgins, R. Eunter, J. A.
Fleming, Thos. Mitchell, S. McGinnis,
F. Nicholson, Jas. M. Pritchard, T- G.
Soole, Wm. Sweetman, Wm. Wood and
S. Leveralt; auditors, Willlam Fahey
and W. D. Thomas; parochial tribun-
al, T. D. Delamere, K.C.; "Thomas
Langton, K.C., and R. C. Bick taff;
lay delegates to' the synod, omas
Langton, K.C.; T. D. Delamere, K.C.,
and R. C. Bickerstaff,

Church of the Messiah.

Rev: R. A, Sims was in the chair.
The financial statement presented by
the wardens was considered ,very 'sat-
isfactory, showing receipts to .have
been $4731, and disbursements about
the same. The past year, with one ex-
ception, was the best in the history

of the church. The sum of $500 was
paid on the organ, and $500 on account
of ‘the mortgage indebtedness. The
reports presented by the various church
organizations were most encouraging.
That of the ladles’ assotiation was
specially worthy of mention, they hav-
ing raised from the proceeds of their
Christmas sale $240 for the building
fund. The rector was voted an in-
crease of $200 in salary, and a bonus
of $100. The following officers were
elected: People’s warden, Mr, Joseph
Walker; rector's .warden, Mr. T. F.
Webb; auditors, Messrs. John Patter-
son and W. S. Battin; finance com-
mittee,Messrs. Battin, Bredin, Lovell,
Hardy; property committee, Messrs.
Heliwell,” Holmes, Briggs; lay repre-
sentatives, Messrs. John Patterson, W.
S. Battin and Wm. Carter; sidesmen,
Messrs. Battin, -Heliwell, Lovell, Ew-
ing, Holmes, Reade,Royslan, McDowell,
, Patterson, Johnston,
Stoger, Burch, J. P. Patterson (sec.),
Richardson, A. J. Hardy, A. Hardy,
Brown.

Grace Church.

Statements presented .at the vestry
meeting over which Rev. J. P. Lewis
presided ‘showed a successful year.
The congregation has been augmented
by a considerable number of -young
people. Collections totaled $2980.90,
while the aggregate expenditure was
$2973. The choir, which is self-sup-
porting, showed an income of $428 for
ordinary purposes, for which $417 was
disbursed. A balance of $56 also re-
mains to its crédit for the revesting
of its members. The revenue of the
Sunday school was $102, of the Guild
of the Good Shepherd $107, and of the
Bible class $80.° The vestry chose J.
W. Congdon as its warden for the
¢coming year, and the rector o,y
Elliott. . The ¥Yepresentatives of the
c¢hurch at the diocesan synod will be
W. Carleill-vP%ll, LL.B.; S. Bar-
- Truscott. The sides-
men will be C- P. Muckle, BA;:; E. T.
Campbell, W. Livingstone, A, Burrows;
. Kough, J. S. Barber, Dr, Austin,
F. C. Fidler, A. F. Wallls, A. ¢. EI-
lott, J. W. Owen,Dr. W. Beattie.Nesbitt
J. BE. Keffer, W. A. Monk, C. Somers,
W. ‘F. Elliott, A. McDonald, T. wW.
Squire, J. Storr, Dr. Q. B. Smith, A.

C. Graham and W. Carleill-Elal],

Christ’s Church, Deer Park,

The annual statement was not en-
tirely satisfactory, showing collections
to be about $100 below last year, The
total receipts were $1686.33, of which
$300 went to a special building fund.
The balance on hand is $37.51. The
Sunday school collection amounted ‘o
$140.42. The rector reported 132 com-
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lowing were appointed as a finance and
consuftﬂ:: ‘committee to act with
therector and the wardens; A. Jephcott
A. W. Clark, J. Brooks, and J. W.
Payne.- The  officers elected were:
Church wardens, T. G. L. Barnes, P.
Dykes; auditors, A. Jephcott, A, W.
Clark; delegates to synod, A. H
Lightbourn, Phil- - Dykes,  W. ' P,
Thompson; envelope secretary, H.
Walker; sidesmen, Messrs. J. Black,
M. B. Thompson, McMullen, Waddell,
Hammer, J, C. Brown, Gore, A. Grif-
fith, H. Walker, Bevis, T. C. Ha.nd,
A. A, Webb, J. W. Payne, Sexton, L.
G. Price, G. Dribble, R. Darling, J.
Brooks. . / &

St. Thomas’

The vicar, Rev, E. L. King, presided,
The reports were satisfactory, the z_;.t-
tendances showing a gratifying in-
crease- The total receipts wers
$6546.03, and expenditures $6508.08, re-
ducing the deficit to $410.47. ‘ It was de-
cided that the parish tribunal should
report upon the raising of $10,000 to
wipe out the mortgage -indebtedness,
the proposal to build a parish hall to
remain in abeyance. The vicar an-
nounced the receipt of a letter from
Rev. C. Ensor Sharp, recently chap-
lain with the imperial fotces at Esqui-
malt, who i€ to succeed Rev. H. Mc-
Causland: as curate. The following
officials were elected: Churchwar-
den’s vicar, H\ J. Paterson; people’s
‘Wm. Rae; sidesmen, Messrs, W. Ince,
Codd, Murton, Swallow, Painter, C.
Pangman, Selby, Bastedo, McGee,
Chambers, Durie; parish tribunal,the
vicar, the wardens, and Messrs. Cart-
wright and Greenwood; auditors,
Messrs: Wedd and, Glazebrook; lay
delegates to the synod, Messrs. Cart-
wright, Beck and - Paterson; vestry
clerk, Acton Burrows; envelope secre-
tary, Mr. Selby; advisory musical com-
mittee, Messrs. Eungerford, Linch,
Wedd and Saunders.

Little Trinity.

‘The weakness of the Bishop of 7To-
ronto was not the only feature of the
mez=ting of Little Trinity. It devel-
oped that during the last year, owing|
principally to’lantern slide entértain+"
ments, the attendance of the church
bad more than doubled. This was
shown by .the statement of finances of
the auxiliary and departments, ‘whizh
were a eredit to the church. Rev. Mr.
O’Meara, who 1{is making way for
Canon Dixon in the church, was zll’
right as a churchman, but he said
some things that a rector would not
say unless he was leaving. For Iin-
stance, he criticized the poor support
given by the women’s auxiliary, whichk
had no money to its credit. The
churchwardens’ 63rd annual report and
financial statement for the year end-
ing Feb. 28, 1906, showed a fairly even
balance and ‘an expenditure of $3393.
The church is not in a lucrative local-
ity, but is prominent in the labor of
love, as statements will show in tne
subsidiary departments. The old lay
delegates of this church had a few ar-
guments with the diccese, but the,
bishop was exonerated. In the election’
there was a little change in the repre-
sentatives. Mr. Plant retiring. The new
lay delegates are: Ross McA. Cameron,
C. H. Beavis and C. A. Carter; church-
wardens, people’s, George Stagg; ‘rec-
tor’s, C. R. Cooper.

.

St. Simon’s.

‘With every department of the church
work reporting a highly successful
year and with an Easter offertory of
over $10,000, bringing the total amount
of the building fund up to $14,055, the
vestry of St. Simon’s Church had no
hesitation last night in deciding to be-
gin work at once on the construction
of a school-house and rectory, to cost
approximately $25,000. The . building
committee is as follows: The rector,
the wardens, Sir H. M. Pellatt, F. E.
Hodgins, D. T. Symons, F. J. Light-
bourn, N. F. Davidson, H. P. Evans,
W. 8. Kerman, Q. D. McCulloch, D. A.
Burns and W. D. Gwynne, The con-
gregations on Easter Sunday totaled
1800, including nearly 600 communicants.
The following officers were elected:
Rector’s warden, M. Rawlinson; peo-
ple’s warden. W. G. Parsons; sidesmen,
George Boyd. D. A. Burns, D. S. Cas-
sels, R. Davids, W. D. Gwynne, C: T.
Jeffereys, William €rane. R. R. Lock-
hart. W. A. Martin, Q. D. MrCulloch,
Reginald Pellatt, R. Petman, V. Robin,
D. T. Symens, A. J. VanRostand, W.
P. Evans, W. Strickland. Total re-
ceipts for the vear were $19,313. Re-
ceiotg for general maintenance were
$6392; for mission and the beneficent
funds $2647.90.

St. Martin's in the Field.
Financial conditions at St. Mar-
tin'g, as indicated by the reports pre-
sented at the vesiry meeting, over
which Rev. W. E. Cooper presided last
night, are normal. The receipts and
expenditures were about the same as
last year, and a small balance remain-
ed on.the credit side. The rector se-

"sistant

port, mentioned that they had executed
a mortgage to the Thompson Trust for
$450V.  The’ mortgage * debt  has been
reduced by $110, thru the effort of Mrs,
Hartley. The financial statement ghow-
ed t the - balance carriegq forward
from%last year wag $30.33, whiist the
balance in hand this year is $78.40,.
The receipts on the general account to-
taled $1683.52, the offertory: being ag
Tollows: Open, $552.75; weekly envel-
opes, = §$666.20; dedication ' envelope
nial boxes, $25.69. Missjons and special
gonod wcpllectio‘ns. including
m W.A., G.A. and C.B.S., amounts
:8 to $108.72. Geo Hewitt was -appoint-
rector’s warden, and Edward Reeves,
people’s warden, - The following sidese
men -were appointed by the rector: J,
R. Davis, T. H. Churchill, J. BE. H;
graves, F. Rhodes, A. Ellis, G Hodg-
#on, W. Pearse, K. Carrie and W, J.
Dawson, and ‘the following elected
by the vestry, 8. H.
Campbell, W, Sn « BX
A. Wright, L.
Thompson, E. i@ ;
ter. .S. Foster was re-appointed yes
try clerk and the lay delegates appoint.
ed to the provincial synod are, J. R,
Davis, F. R. Warg d F..J
It was decideg to increase the rector's
stipend from $500 to $600 per Yyear,

- St. Stephen’s.
Such has been the financial p; A
of St. Stephen's Church that salaries
’wem incr;ued.n A motion carried, to
necrease Rev. Dr, Broughall's ipend
$200. but he declined it, and tn:t mate
ter was-finally left with the'church offis
clals. The assistant rector, Rev, J. 8,

Bronzhn!l,"re'cplved an increase of
and the organist, E. R. Doward, |

The receipts amounted to $10,228.01, of
Which $5561.86 came from offertorics

alone. For missions, $304.88 was glven,

while the Ladies’ Aid contributed $550,

The total Habilities of the congregation

fow amount to $6597.99, of which $5100

is on a mortgage. The various church

organizations were all shown fo be in

a flourishing condition, tho the mis-

Slonary contiibutions = were nardly

thought to be up:to standard. The as-

rector remarked that on Easter

Sunday between 850 ang 860 partook of

communion, which he thought was the

largest of any Anglican church in the

Dominion. The officers are: Rector's

warden, C. - A, C. Jennings; ‘people's

warden, Capt. R. M. Melville; sides-

A. bBuure,
IFEI" llgrslélne,l. D. Mo
e eld, . N. Ma; - Co Py
Godden, James Watt, W. 8. Hiks 1
A. Sievert, Charles Wray, Hall, H
man, Leverty, Niblet, Walnwright.
Robinson, Heron, Dr. Hendrick and Dr,-
Pepler; lay delegates to synod, W, W,
Nation, W. A, Browne and W. Cooky
auditors, W. W.'Nation and J. A.'M,
Alley; parish tribunal, T. R. Fuiler

Inspector Hall.
g ———a——

St. Mark’s, Junction. -
Rev. R. Seaborn, M.A., rector of St,
Mark’s Church, Toronto Junction, pre-
sided. The following officers were ape
pointed: Lay representatives to synod,
I. Woodland, F. @. Martyn ang C.
Barker;  church warden, A. L,
Pye; rector's warden, Peter Laughe
ton; sidesmen, H’ Hand, A. Hing, J,
Sutherland, T, Woodland, A, Gillie
brand, H. Ineson; auditors, E. Hane
cock and J. Fulford; vestry clerk, C,
Barker; parochial tribunal, Frank
Laughton and John  Sutheriand,
The financial report was rathep
discouraging:. It showed total
receipt; of $670.59, and a total expendie
ture of $561.37. The receipts for the
year were $928.71. However, the ree
ports of the various church socletles
Were more encouraging. Rector’s pri=
vate fund, -receipts totaled $60.57, and
expenditures - $41.96; Ladies’ Ald So-
clety, receipts $215.46; expenditures
$115.42; A.Y-P.A., receipts $58.32, ex-
bpenditures $35.64; sanctuary chapter,
réceipts $128.43, expenditures $121.19;
Sunday school, receipts $91.19, expendie
tures $46.88; choir, receipts $45.47, ex-
penditures $25.73. ‘The average morne
ing attendance was 76, as compared§
with 79 last year, and the evening ats
tendance 98, as against 92, The nume
ber of communicants - at. Eastér was
76; last year 56. The rector stated
that this year he had baptized 28
children (26 last year), buried 9 people-
and married 8 couples, -
There were only three marriages last
year, and the rector credited this year's
increase to newly- ved English im-
migrants, who h sent to England
for thelr sweethearts. - The rector’s
proposal for the institution of a sure
p)ceg choir met with approval.

Marvelous Results

Will Follow!

lected as- his warden Thomas Need-
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ham, while the vestry elected J. D.
Fisher. The parochial counc’l will con.
sist of, in addition .to the re>tor and
wardens: R. Needham and W. T,
Thompson. The meeting adjourned
until April 30, when the lay delegates
to the synod will be chosen.

St. Margaret’s. |
The rector, Rev. R. J Moore, presid- |
ed and the attendance was large. Hav-
ing begun the year with $53.19, suffi-
cient has been received to allow the
reduction of the debt by $1000; and
after paying all expenses to close the |
year with a balance of $61.54. The or-
dinary reverme amounteq to $2796.68, |
and total receipts to $5137. Chas?f De-
verell was elected people’s warden and

Jd. R, Code was appointed by the rec-

There is not the slightest reason, deap
mother, why your baby should continue

to be weak, frail and puny. The agent = -

and means for making your baby strong
and healthy is near you, and the fault
is yours if you do not use it. i
Lactated Food is the acknowiedged .
agent and medium for strengthening
and building up your baby. The foods

{with which you have been feeding baby
{are unsuiteq for its present condition;
{and You must not expect any progress

while they are continued. Indeed, weé
are justified in asserting that your
child is likely to die, unless you speeds
ily give it Lactated Food.
If you follow the example of othe!
mothers, you will soon have yoyr baby :
fat and health¥, strong and rugged.
Feed it on Lactated Food for one
month, and you will see marvelous l":
sults. . v

$23.88; Easter envelopes, $35.30; self-de-
donations
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